ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON & SOCI AL SERVI CES COW TTEE
February 5, 2001
1:32 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Lyda Green, Chair

Senat or Loren Leman, Vice Chair
Senator Gary W/ ken

Senator Jerry Ward

Senat or Bettye Davis

MEVMBERS ABSENT
Al Menbers Present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

CS FOR SENATE BILL NO. 19(RES)

"An Act repealing the term nation date of changes made by ch. 87,
SLA 1997, and ch. 132, SLA 1998, regarding child support
enforcenment and related programs; repealing the nonseverability
provi sion of ch. 132, SLA 1998; repealing uncodified |laws relating
to ch. 87, SLA 1997, and ch. 132, SLA 1998; and providing for an
effective date."

MOVED CSSB 19(HES) QUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BILL NO. 2
"An Act relating to reinbursement of nunicipal bonds for school
construction; and providing for an effective date.”

MOVED SB 2 OQUT OF COW TTEE
SENATE BI LL NO. 11
"An Act relating to the legal age for attending school; and
providing for an effective date."”

HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COWM TTEE ACTI ON
SB 2 - No previous action.
SB 11 - No previous action.

SB 19 - See Resources mnutes dated 1/24/01 and HESS m nutes dated
1/ 29/ 01.

W TNESS REG STER

SENATE HES COW TTEE -1- February 5, 2001



Ms. Juli Lucky

Aide to Senator Hal ford

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Expl ai ned a proposed anmendnent to SB 19

Ms. Di ane Wendl andt

Assi stant Attorney General

Departnent of Law

PO Box 110300

Juneau, AK 99811-0300

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Confirnmed that Senator Hal ford' s anendnent
to SB 19 would not interfere wwth CSED s ability to conply with
federal requirenents

Ms. Barbara Mkl os, Director

Child Support Enforcenent Division

Depart ment of Revenue

550 W7th Ave., Suite 310

Anchorage, AK 99501

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Not opposed to Senator Hal ford' s anmendnent
to SB 19

Julia Tenison

Chugi ak, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed concern about the
constitutionality of SB 19

Mary Jackson

Ai de to Senator Torgerson

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified for the sponsor of SB 2

Debbi e Gssi ander

Anchor age School Board

PO Box 670772

Chugi ak, AK 99567

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 2

Eddi e Jeans
School Finance and Facilities Section
Departnent of Education &
Early Devel opnent
801 W 10" St.
Juneau, AK 99801-1894
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions about SB 2

Senat or CGene Therri aul t
Al aska State Capitol

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 2- February 5, 2001



Juneau, AK 99801-1182
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of SB 11

Holly Morris

Staff to Senator Therriault

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions about SB 11

Loyol a McManus

Al aska Associ ation of Elenmentary Principals
927 Whod Wy

Fai r banks, AK 99709

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 41 and SB 11

M. Vernon WMarshal

Executive Director, NEA-Al aska

114 2nd Street

Juneau, AK 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 11

M. Darrol Hargraves

Executive Director

Al aska Council of School Adm nistrators
326 4th, Suite 404

Juneau, AK 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 11

M. David Pfrimer

North Pol e El enmentary School

250 Snowmran Lane

North Pole, AK 99705

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 11

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 01-8, SIDE A
Number 001

CHAIR LYDA GREEN called the Senate Health, Education & Soci al
Services Conmttee neeting to order at 1:32 p.m Present were
Senators W1 ken, WwWard, Davis and G een. The first order of
busi ness to cone before the commttee was SB 19.

#SB19
SB 19-CH LD SUPPORT ENFORCEMENT/ SOC SEC. #

SENATOR WARD noved to adopt the proposed CSSB 19(HES), | abel ed as
Version L, for the purpose of discussion. There being no

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 3- February 5, 2001



obj ection, the notion carried.

CHAI R GREEN expl ai ned that the findings and intent section in SB 19
was removed in the commttee substitute. |In addition, the sunset
provi sions on the sections requiring that social security nunbers
be provided by applicants for various |icenses, court docunents,
and to the Bureau of Vital Statistics, were reinstated. The five
year sunset provision was al so renewed on the provisions allow ng
the Child Support Enforcenent Division (CSED) to enter into
agreenents with financial institutions for financial data matching.
She noted the provisions in the bill that were left as is (wWwth no
sunset provision) were those that would be detrinmental to the
state, CSED, or the people involved. One exanple is that the fine
for incorrect enployer reporting will remain at $10 instead of
$1, 000. She noted Senator Halford has asked the commttee to
consi der an anendnent.

M5. JULI LUCKY, staff to Senator Hal ford, explained that Senator
Hal ford has had concerns about the CSED | egi sl ation that passed in
1997 and 1998. (One concern was the new hire reporting requirenent.
Smal | enpl oyers who hire people sporadically mght not be aware of
the new hire requirenent, therefore Senator Halford wants to
provide protection fromliability for those enpl oyers for the wages
t hat shoul d have been withheld. That protection would not apply to
enpl oyers who have been served with w thhol ding orders. She noted
the statute would be clarified by adding, to the new hire reporting
section, the phrase, "Violation of this subsection does not give
rise to a private cause of action.”

CHAI R GREEN asked for an explanation of "private cause of action.”

MS. LUCKY explained that the enployer could not be sued by a
private party, therefore the person who is owed the noney coul d not
sue the enployer. She clarified that a private cause of action is
not between CSED and the enpl oyer.

V5. DI ANE VENDLANDT, Assistant Attorney General, Departnent of Law,
said her understanding of the anendnent is that it wll address
private liability to a custodial parent or soneone el se who i s owed
child support and mght attenpt to hold an enpl oyer liable, outside
of statutory penalties, which are already in place. The federal
law requires certain statutory penalties, which wll not be
af fected by the anendnent.

M5. BARBARA M KLCS, Director of CSED, testified via tel econference
and said that as long as CSED renmains in conpliance with the
wel fare reformrequirenents, she doesn’t think the amendnent wll
do any harm

SENATE HES COW TTEE -4- February 5, 2001



M5. VEENDLANDT said she doesn't believe the anmendnment will place
CSED out of conpliance.

CHAI R GREEN announced her intention to pass the bill fromcommttee
today. She noted she spent a lot of time going over all of the
provisions of the bill to create the new draft.

SENATOR LEMAN noved to adopt Senator Hal ford's amendnent (Version
L.1). There being no objection, the amendnent was adopt ed.

SENATOR LEMAN noved to report CSSB 19(HES) as anended from the
Senate HESS Committee with individual recomendations and its
acconpanyi ng fiscal notes. There being no objection, the notion
carried.

Nunber 774

M5. JULI A TENI SON, testifying via teleconference from Chugi ak, said
she would like to comrent on the legislation to repeal the |aw
requiring the collection of social security nunbers for CSED.

CHAI R GREEN expl ai ned that when the original |egislation was passed
in 1978 and 1998, nmany sections contained a three year sunset
provision. CSED submtted legislation [SB 19] to renove all sunset
provi sions, therefore none of the provisions woul d have been up for
review. The commttee has renoved three provisions fromthe bil
so that they will come back for reviewin five years.

M5. LUCKY noted that she was contacted by Ms. Teni son because she
had sonme problens receiving a driver's |license due to the social
security nunber requirement. M. Tenison does not have a soci al
security nunber and has received several tickets for driving
wi thout a license. M. Tenison is famliar with the |egislation
and has done exhaustive research on the legislation that was passed
in 1997 and 1998.

M5. TENI SON i nforned comm ttee nenbers that she has a case pending
before the Court of Appeals.

CHAIR GREEN asked if her situation is related to child support
enf or cenent .

M5. TENISON replied, "Only to the extent that the legislation
passed and the nanme of child support enforcenent has reached out
and touched ny life."

CHAI R GREEN said the CSED director was asked at the |last neeting

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 5- February 5, 2001



about the inpact on drivers' |icenses. She thought that issue
woul d have to be taken up with the Division of Mtor Vehicles

(DW) .

M5. WVENDLANDT said her understanding is that there was sone
confusion on the part of DW but it has been cleared up.
Apparently, DW thought if a person did not have a social security
nunber, he or she had to obtain one to get a driver's |icense.
That is not CSED s position. At this point, if a person does not
have a social security nunber, he or she does not have to obtain
one to get a driver's license.

Nunber 1052

M5. M KLGS confirnmed Ms. Wendl andt's statenent and said she tal ked
to the director of DW a few weeks ago. The director assured her
that she sent a letter to all field offices informng themthat if
a person has never had a social security nunber, that person nust
sign an affidavit saying so. She was not sure whether M. Tenison
has gone back to DW since that tine.

M5. TENI SON said she has not. She pointed out her concern about
this law is that when she went to DW, the office manager was
enforcing this legislation and handed her a copy of a direct quote
fromthe statute. M. Tenison was denied reissue of her driver's
| i cense. Nothing in the law itself allows for correcting a big
error in the law after the fact. That is why she is in court and
does not have a driver's |icense. She stated the legislature
created a situation that needs to be |ooked at seriously,
especially the findings and purposes section, because the law is
unr easonabl e and unconstitutional. She believes the constitutional
i ssues surrounding this law are very serious and should not be
pushed asi de.

Regardi ng DW, MsS. TEN SON said she has not been contacted about
t he change in policy.

CHAI R GREEN asked Ms. Lucky to contact the director of DW and put
her in contact with Ms. Tenison.

M5. LUCKY agreed and inforned commttee nenbers that Ms. Tenison's
main concern is about the constitutionality of collecting social
security nunbers.

Nunber 1187

CHAI R GREEN i nfornmed Ms. Teni son that nost people in the roomwoul d
have fully agreed with Ms. Tenison 10 to 15 years ago when the

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 6- February 5, 2001



federal government forbade the use of social security nunbers for
i dentification. Now the federal governnent has reversed that
decision and allows social security nunbers to be required. The
new federal directive has changed the constitutionality question.

M5. TEN SON responded that the federal |aw does not nandate
anything - it says states need to do things if they want to
continue to get noney. Section 7 of the Privacy Act of 1974 (PL
93-579) says a person cannot be required to give his or her soci al
security nunber. She said she has done enough research to know t he
| aw has not actually changed, even though the federal governnent
may say it has.

CHAI R GREEN said she would | ook into that.

MS. TENISON said if the commttee is interested, Senator Hal ford's
office mght be able to provide a copy of the |legal research she
has done on the constitutional issues for her case before the Court

of Appeal s.

CHAI R GREEN t hanked Ms. Tenison, Ms. Lucky, and Ms. Wendl andt and
announced the conmttee would take up SB 2.

#

Nunber 1315

#SB 2
SB_ 2-MUNI Cl PAL SCHOOL BOND REI MBURSEMENT

M5. MARY JACKSON, aide to Senator Torgerson, sponsor of SB 2,
expl ai ned the neasure as follows. HB 281, which passed | ast year,
was a bondi ng package that included a nunber of projects, including
school bonds. The tinmeframe for that bondi ng package is from 1998
to 2004. SB 2 predom nantly affects the Anchorage School District.
SB 2 exenpts Anchorage from the requirement to adhere to sone of
the ball ot proposition | anguage currently in statute and corrects
an unintended glitch in HB 281.

CHAIR GREEN asked if the Mat-Su Borough ever fell wthin the
troubl esone part of HB 281.

M5. JACKSON replied Mat-Su was included in HB 281 and was the
reason the bill was retroactive to 1998. Her understanding is that
t he Mat-Su Borough has taken full advantage of all of the bonds so
it does not have to cone back under this program She expl ai ned
that Anchorage put a vote before the voters for 100 percent
rei nbursenent, instead of a 70-30 split.

CHAI R GREEN asked if all other |anguage is the sane.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -7- February 5, 2001



M5. JACKSON said it is. She pointed out the first revision to the
law is on page 4 and that Section 1 is in existing | aw.

CHAI R GREEN asked what cost is associated with SB 2.

M5. JACKSON said the fiscal note is zero because it applies to a
previ ous bond.

CHAI R GREEN t ook public testinony.

V5. DEBBI E OSSI ANDER, Anchorage School Board, stated strong support
for SB 2. She explained that technical |anguage probl ens prohibited
Anchorage fromtaking full advantage of HB 281. Anchorage voters
approved $77.9 mllion worth of school bonds. At the tine no one
knew whether any state reinbursenent for those bonds was a
possibility. Passage of SB 2 will enable Anchorage to follow suit
with other districts and take advantage of previously apportioned
noney.

CHAI R GREEN asked Ms. GOssiander if Anchorage was included in the
conversation about HB 281 | ast year.

M5. OSSI ANDER said it was and that Anchorage |obbied for debt
rei mbursement. Unfortunately, at the tinme, Anchorage did not know
what percentage of debt reinbursenent was possible. At the advice
of bond counsel, |anguage was put forth to the voters saying that
Anchorage would attenpt to go for debt reinbursement but, if not
avai |l abl e, 100 percent would be paid | ocally.

SENATOR WARD asked how nmuch noney is invol ved.

MR. EDDY JEANS, school finance manager for the Departnent of
Education and Early Devel opnent (DOEED), said SB 2 only affects the
Anchorage School District and possibly one project in the Northwest
Arctic Borough. Under HB 281, the |egislature passed a |engthy
debt reinbursenent list. Unfortunately, this will continue to be a
problem in the future as nunicipalities continue to get voter
approval for projects when the debt reinbursenent program has no
aut horization for those projects. DCEED will not review and
approve projects for a debt reinbursenent programif there is no
aut hori zation. That is exactly what happened in Anchorage. There
was no authorization on the books but Anchorage decided to go to
the voters for approval. Key elenents were not on the ballot that
were required by the legislation, such as the anmount of
rei mbursenent from the State, the estimated total cost of the
project, the estimated interest, and the estimated annual cost of
operation and nai ntenance. DOCEED will not review ball ot |anguage

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 8- February 5, 2001



if it does not have authorization on the books so Anchorage got
ahead of DCEED.

CHAI R GREEN asked if the Mat-Su Borough cane back to DOEED after it
held its el ection.

MR JEANS said it did.

CHAI R GREEN asked if it was assuned that Anchorage would qualify
when HB 281 was enact ed.

MR. JEANS said that he could nake that assurance.

SENATOR DAVI S asked Ms. Gssiander for the projects those bonds wll
cover.

M5. OSSI ANDER replied SB 2 applies to the bonds that were passed on
April 4, 2000. The projects include:

e Phase 1 Bartlett Hi gh School

e Phase 2 and 3 Chugi ak Hi gh School

« Phase 1 East Hi gh School

e Phase 1 Service H gh Schoo

« Phase 1 Wendler M ddle School

e The Denali Elenentary repl acenent project

e District wide renewal/replacenent ADA code grades, roof
repl acenents, G rdwood roof replacenent, electrical upgrades
and traffic safety work.

CHAI R GREEN not ed an absence of any reference to charter schools.
M5. OSSI ANDER said that is true.

CHAI R GREEN asked what it would take to get a charter school on the
list.

M5. OSSI ANDER said it would take a bit of a phil osophical shift for
the Board. Currently, the Board assunes that charter schools woul d
deal with their own buil di ng needs.

There being no further testinony on SB 2, SENATOR LEMAN noved SB 2
fromcomittee with individual recomrendations and a zero fisca
note, if there is one. There being no objection, the notion
carri ed.

#

#SB 11

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 9- February 5, 2001



SB 11- COVPULSORY SCHOCOL AGE

CHAI R GREEN asked Senator Therriault to present SB 11.

SENATOR GENE THERRI AULT, sponsor of SB 11, explained that SB 11 was
requested by a public school principal in his district. SB 11
sinmply anends the current statute that says that every child nust
begin formal schooling by the age of 7. SB 11 changes the start
date fromage 7 to age 6. It does not inpact Section (b) of that
statute, which says the child does not have to be in public school
to neet those requirenents. A child could be hone schooled or
attend an alternative school.

CHAI R GREEN asked if the current statute contai ns exceptions.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said the statute contains a long laundry |ist of
exceptions. He pointed out that if a child or famly has an
energency situation, such as an illness, Section b(8) provides for
an exenption granted by the district. SB 11 will not inpact that
section. SB 11 also provides for optional kindergarten attendance
so that a parent could place a six year old child in kindergarten
or first grade.

CHAI R GREEN asked if SB 11 has any application to the qualifying
date for entry to school. She felt it is inportant for people to
understand what this bill does not do.

SENATOR THERRI AULT expl ai ned that when a child turns six, the child
woul d have to be enrolled in school.

CHAI R GREEN asked what woul d happen to a child who turned six in
February.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said the child would enter school the follow ng
school year

CHAI R GREEN pointed out a child nust be five by August 15 for entry
to school in Al aska.

Nunber 2001

SENATOR THERRI AULT expl ai ned that the issue he is trying to get at
with SB 11 deals with a snmall nunber of people who enroll their
children in the public education system before age 7 but do not
make the children attend, since attendance is not mandatory until
age 7. Teachers nust expend a lot of tinme and energy to keep those
children up to speed with the rest of the class or not advance them
at the end of the school year in the student's first year of

SENATE HES COW TTEE -10- February 5, 2001



attendance. Mst agree there is sone stignma associated with being
hel d back. He believes in providing sone flexibility for parents
but once a child is enrolled in first grade, the parent should
ensure that the child attends regul arly.

SENATOR LEMAN said he agrees with the problembut not with the fix.
He suggested making the enroll nent date the mandatory age so that
students are conpelled to attend. He asked Senator Therriault if
he consi dered any ot her options.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said he did not because the nunmber of children
who fall into this category is very snmall. He received statistica
information that shows that in 1995, 96 percent of five and six
years of age were enrolled in formal education, with the exception

of children who are honme school ed. If honme school students are
i ncluded, the percentage is about 98 percent, therefore only two
out of 100 children fall in this category.

SENATOR LEMAN said he believes this will only apply to a very smal |
nunber of people but those people probably care about governnent
intervention in their lives. He would be nore inclined to support
a fix that solves the problemw thout overreachi ng.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said SB 11 does not inpact the nunber of years a
child nmust be in the education system It just requires that when
one starts, he or she has to stick with it.

SENATOR LEMAN i nt ai ned that he does not read the bill to say one
has to stick with it once one starts.

CHAIR GREEN pointed to line 8, which reads, "shall maintain the
child in attendance, except as provided in (b)." She asked if
current statute requires parents to have their children in school
except for illness or energency.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said he could not speak to each district's
policy. He said he tried to draft the bill narrowy so that it
gets at the issue yet maintains flexibility for parents.

SENATOR DAVI S indi cated that she signed on as a co-sponsor to SB 11
because she believes it is high time that the State |ower the
mandatory age to attend school. Mst states require children to
attend school at age 5. In Al aska, sone students enter school at
age 7 without having attended kindergarten or first grade. She
said children mature earlier now and many do not have parents who
will pay for themto attend preschool and get an early start. This
way, those children would not be left at honme and would be able to
attend school because it would be mandatory. She said she would

SENATE HES COW TTEE -11- February 5, 2001



prefer to require mandatory school enroll nment at age five.

SENATOR THERRI AULT pointed out the fiscal note is indetermnate
because the expected nunber of students that SB 11 will inpact is
very small.

TAPE 01-8, SIDE B
SENATOR WARD asked when and why age 7 was put in statute.

M5. HOLLY MORRIS, staff to Senator Therriault, infornmed the
commttee that the ages 7 to 16 are in the statute fromthe Al aska
Conpi l ed Laws of the Territory, 1949. The legislative |librarians
found the |law goes back to 1913. The statute has never been
revi ewed between then and now.

M5. LOYOLA MCMANUS, representing the Alaska Association of
El ementary School Principals (AAESP), testified from Fairbanks.
She believes SB 11 addresses two issues: children who begin school
at age 7 are at a disadvantage because those children are one to
two years behind his or her peers. Those children are at risk of
bei ng physically, enotionally and socially out of sync with their
classmates. G ven that the general practice in Alaska is that 6
year olds are in school, SB 11 would provide a nore appropriate and
uniformstarting point for all children. Second, SB 11 addresses
truancy and enforcenment. At the elenmentary level, truancy is often
a famly problem [If a district wants to use the court systemto
address school attendance, it could not do so for a six year old.
This sends a nessage to famlies that early education is not
inmportant. In 1998, AAESP passed a resolution supporting early
chi | dhood education and mandatory kindergarten in Al aska. AAESP
feels that in light of research on brain growth and devel opnent,
and | ongitudi nal studies on early education experiences, this is a
desirable goal. SB 41, by Senator Davis, addresses that concern.
She commended Senators Therriault and Davis for their efforts.

MR DAVI D PFRI MMER, principal of North Pole El ementary School, gave
the foll owi ng exanpl e of the problem one student m ssed 75 days of
ki ndergarten and then 45 or 50 days of first grade. The schoo

district attenpted to withdraw the child but was unable to because
the child was not 7. The child m ssed 40 days the follow ng year
and at that time the district was able to take the case to court.
Wth the new truancy |law and DFYS intervention, the district was
able to get the child back to school. By that time, the child was
far behind academ cally, socially, and enotionally. He has net
children who started school at age 7 who are one to two years
behind the rest of their age group and nust attend kindergarten.
He noted that students can begin school in first grade but

SENATE HES COW TTEE -12- February 5, 2001



ki ndergarten has becone nore academic so first grade can be
difficult without it.

MS. OSSI ANDER, Anchorage School Board, stated support for SB 11.
Educati on research shows the benefit of early education and nore
parents are asking for a full-day kindergarten. She noted with the
new nove toward accountability of schools, grade 3 is a benchmark
gr ade. Children who begin school at age 7 will have a |ot of
catching up to do. Children are expected to be reading at the end
of first grade.

Number 2083

MR. VERNON MARSHALL, Executive Director of NEA-Al aska, said NEA
supports SB 11 for nmany of the reasons stated. NEA believes it is
critical that children receive educational instruction before age 7
because they will be expected to have reached a proficient |evel of
reading, witing and math for the third grade benchmark exam He
agrees that nost six year olds are in first grade prograns - SB 11
will establish conpulsory attendance at age siXx. That
st andar di zati on nakes good educati onal sense. He thought nost hone
school parents are attenpting to educate their children at age six
anyway.

CHAI R GREEN asked if state | aw addresses truancy.

MR MARSHALL replied there is conpul sory attendance by | aw for ages
7 to 16 and some woul d argue that allows for enforcenent but Al aska
does not have aggressive truancy laws. |n general, the school year
is 180 to 185 days but there is no mninmm nunber of days of
attendance for children.

CHAI R GREEN asked if other states mandate the nunber of days of
at t endance.

MR. MARSHALL said sone states do.

CHAI R GREEN sai d they must have exenptions.

MR. MARSHALL said those |laws are very simlar to Al aska's |aw.
Nunber 1950

SENATOR LEMAN asked M. Marshall to expand on his statenent that
nost honme school parents are attenpting to educate their children

He asked if M. Marshall believes the sanme is true of the teachers
in the NEA or whether he believes they are actually educating them

SENATE HES COW TTEE -13- February 5, 2001



MR. MARSHALL said one has to make the attenpt to educate and
everyone is doing that. Home school parents have the sane goal
Sonetimes those attenpts are successful, sonetines they are not.

SENATOR LEMAN questioned whether M. Marshall was being pejorative
about hone school i ng.

MR. MARSHALL clarified that he should have said "an aggressive
attenpt."” NEA wants students to succeed and w |l make the attenpt
to get themover the bars that are now in place.

SENATOR LEMAN sai d he believes that nost parents feel the sane way
about their children.

SENATOR WARD asked if NEA has a list of the age requirenents for
school attendance in the other states.

MR. MARSHALL said he could provide that information.
Nunber 1827

MR. DARROL HARGRAVES, Executive Director of the A aska Council of
School Adm nistrators, said the Council agrees with nost of the
argunents made in favor of SB 11 today. He feels the conpul sory
age should be lowered to age 6 because many states have detected
that early education is inportant. He cautioned that an eval uation
process be put in place to consider exceptional children. School
districts have eval uation processes in place to exanm ne children
enotionally, intellectually, physically, and socially to determ ne
whether a child is ready for kindergarten. Sone children may not
be able to handle all of the information they are expected to | earn
by grade 3. He maintained that Al aska's conpul sory attendance | aws
do not have the teeth in them to nmake them neani ngful. I n
organi zed areas, districts can ask the police for assistance, but
many children in Alaska are truant. Conpul sory attendance neans
that a district has a policy, but districts are unable to get help
fromthe state troopers because they are too busy.

SENATOR WARD asked if the states with a | ower age requirenent have
a mandat ory ki ndergarten provision.

MR. HARGRAVES sai d sone states nade changes in the 1960s and 1970s
based on research that showed that children are maturing faster.
Research on brain devel opnment has inproved. That is the argunent
he has heard other states nake.

SENATOR WARD asked if those states al so nandate ki ndergarten

SENATE HES COW TTEE -14- February 5, 2001



MR. HARGRAVES said he was not certain. He said that nost states
encour age ki ndergarten attendance.

Number 1620

MR. EDDY JEANS, school finance nmanager of DCEED, pointed out that
AS 14.30.030 says the governing body of a school district,
i ncluding an REAA, shall establish procedures to prevent and reduce
truancy. Therefore each school district nust set its own policy
and procedures. He believes the conpul sory education |aw has 12
exenptions so any parent who wants to keep a child out of school
will find a way. He felt Senator Therriault's concern is valid.
DCEED funds the students who are enroll ed.

CHAI R GREEN said she is unresolved on this issue. She pointed out
that when SB 98 was before the legislature in 1995-1996, the
| egi slature attenpted to tie school attendance to public assistance
but it could not be done. She asked Senator Therriault to work
with Senator Leman on a resolution to the problem and announced
that SB 11 will be held over. She announced that the conmttee
will hear SB 40 and SB 64 on Wednesday and it will take up the exit
exam the foll ow ng week. She then adjourned the neeting at 3:15
p. m

#

SENATE HES COW TTEE -15- February 5, 2001



